Case 1:18-cv-04447-MLB Document 1 Filed 09/21/18 Page 1 of 12

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA
ATLANTA DIVISION

TAMEKA BRYANT, Individually, :
and On Behalf of Others Similarly :

Situated,
Plaintiff, E Civil Action File No.
V.
DEKALB MEDICAL CENTER, -: Jury Trial Demand
INC., :
Defendant.
COMPLAINT

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Tameka Bryant (“Ms. Bryant”), by and through

counsel undersigned, and hereby submits this action, on behalf of herself and others

similarly situated, against DeKalb Medical Center, Inc. (“DMC” or “Defendant”).

This is a renewal action, pursuant to O.C.G.A. 8 9-2-61. Pursuant to O.C.G.A. 8 9-

11-41, the previous action, Bryant v. DeKalb Medical Hospital, Civil Action No. 18-

A-67840, in the State Court of DeKalb County, Georgia, was dismissed without

prejudice,. This renewal action is brought within six months from the dismissal

without prejudice.
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1.

Ms. Bryant, and others similarly situated, bring this action against DMC for
violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 216
(“FLSA”), which authorizes employees to institute civil actions in court to recover
damages for an employer’s failure to pay minimum wages and overtime wages, as
required by the FLSA.

Parties, Jurisdiction and VVenue

2.

At all times relevant to this action, Plaintiff was a resident of the State of

Georgia and voluntarily submits herself to the jurisdiction of this Court.
3.

Defendant is a Domestic Nonprofit Corporation formed and doing business in
the State of Georgia, and is subject to the jurisdiction and venue of this Court, with
its principal office located at 2701 North Decatur Road, Decatur, Georgia 30033.
Defendant may be served via its Registered Agent, Charles B. Eberhart, at 2675
North Decatur Road, Decatur, Georgia 30033.

4.
The jurisdiction of this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1331 and

1337.
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Venue is proper in this Court.

Factual Allegations

6.
At all times relevant hereto, Ms. Bryant, and others similarly situated, worked
for Defendant at its office located in DeKalb County, Georgia.
7.
Defendant is an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods
for commerce as defined by 8§ 203(s) of the FLSA.
8.
Defendant is an “employer” within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).
9.
At all relevant times, Ms. Bryant, and others similarly situated, were
“employees” of Defendant within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(1).
10.
At all relevant times, Ms. Bryant, and others similarly situated, were non-
exempt employees entitled to minimum wages and overtime compensation within the

meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. 88 206, 207, and 216(b).
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11.
The overtime provisions set forth in § 207 of the FLSA apply to Defendant.
12.

The additional persons that may become Plaintiffs in this action are
Defendant’s current and/or former employees that are/were non-exempt and who,
during one or more work weeks in the three year statute of limitations period, were
not paid time and a half wages for all hours they worked in excess of forty (40) in a
work week.

13.

Ms. Bryant brings this action as a collective action on behalf of herself and all
other similarly situated employees who consent to representation, pursuant to 29
U.S.C. 8§216(b).

14.

From March 2017 through July 2017, Ms. Bryant was employed by Defendant

as a PDX Operator.
15.
Defendant agreed to pay Ms. Bryant at the rate of $16.04 per hour during her

employment with Defendant.
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16.

Throughout her employment with Defendant, Ms. Bryant frequently worked
prior to clocking in, past the end of scheduled shifts, and worked from home in order
to meet expectations. This practice was encouraged by Ms. Bryant’s supervisor.

17.

Ms. Bryant worked approximately sixty-nine (69) hours per week while
employed by Defendant. She estimates that, including the aforementioned “off the
clock” hours, she worked twenty-nine (29) hours in excess of forty (40) hours per week
in at least seventeen (17) weeks during her employment with Defendant.

18.

Defendant was aware of the fact that its employees, including Ms. Bryant,
worked prior to clocking in, past the end of their shifts, and worked from home;
however, Defendant routinely only paid employees for the hours they were
scheduled to work, forty (40) hours per week, and failed to adequately adjust
compensation for the amount of hours actually worked.

19.
Defendant failed to accurately report and/or record the time worked by Ms.

Bryant.
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20.

Upon discovering that she was not being paid for all the hours she worked,

including overtime, Ms. Bryant complained to her supervisors.
21.

Instead of rectifying its FLSA violation, Defendant disciplined Ms. Bryant for
complaining.

22,

In July 2017, after complaining to Defendant multiple times regarding its
failure to pay her for all hours she worked, Ms. Bryant quit.

23.

As a result of Defendant’s compensation practices and policies, Defendant
failed to compensate Ms. Bryant for all hours worked, including overtime hours
worked.

24,
Defendant did not make a good faith effort to comply with the FLSA with

respect to its compensation of Ms. Bryant.
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25.

Before filing this action, Ms. Bryant attempted to resolve her claims with
Defendant’s counsel; however, Defendant ultimately refused to pay Ms. Bryant the
compensation due to her.

26.

Ms. Bryant retained undersigned counsel to represent her in this action and

has incurred costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.
27.

As a result of the foregoing, Ms. Bryant files this lawsuit, seeking earned but
unpaid overtime wages, earned but unpaid regular wages, liquidated damages, and
attorneys’ fees and costs.

COUNT I
(Violation of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 207 - Failure to Pay Overtime)

28.
Plaintiff incorporates by reference, as though fully set forth herein, the
allegations contained in the preceding Paragraphs.
29.
Defendant is not exempt from application of the FLSA’s overtime provisions as
they pertain to Ms. Bryant, as Defendant has failed to meet the requirements for

exemption pursuant to the FLSA.
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30.

By failing to properly pay Ms. Bryant for all hours worked in excess of forty
(40) hours per week, Defendant violated the overtime provisions of the FLSA, 29
U.S.C. § 207.

31.

Defendant is liable to Ms. Bryant for compensation for any and all time she
worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week at the rate of at least one and one-half
times her regularly hourly rate, as required by the FLSA.

32,

By failing to properly pay overtime compensation to Ms. Bryant in accordance
with 88 203 and 207 of the FLSA, Defendant willfully, intentionally, knowingly,
and/or recklessly violated the FLSA.

33.

As a result of Defendant’s violations of the FLSA, Ms. Bryant is entitled to

damages, including, without limitation, unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated

damages, attorneys’ fees, and costs pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216.
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COUNT 11
(Violations of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 215 — Retaliation)

34,

Plaintiff incorporates by reference, as though fully set forth herein, the

allegations contained in the preceding Paragraphs.
35.

In lodging a complaint with Defendant regarding its failure to provide
compensation for overtime pay, Ms. Bryant engaged in protected activity under the
FLSA.

36.

A causal connection exists between the protected activity engaged in by Ms.
Bryant and Defendant’s decision to discipline Ms. Bryant in retaliation for her
complaints.

37.

As a result of Defendant’s violation of the anti-retaliation provisions of the
FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 215(a)(3), Ms. Bryant is entitled to damages in an amount to be
determined by the trier of fact.

Prayer

WHEREFORE, Ms. Bryant prays that this Court:
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(@)

(b)

©)

(d)

)

Permits this case to proceed as a FLSA collective action under 29
U.S.C. § 216 for Defendant’s workers, past and present, who elect to
participate in this action by filing proper written notice with the Court;
Awards Judgment in favor of Ms. Bryant and for each of the opt-in class
against Defendant for overtime pay, and liquidated damages;

Awards Judgment in favor of Ms. Bryant for damages as a result of
Defendant’s retaliation against her for engaging in protected activity in
violation of 29 U.S.C. § 215(a)(3);

Awards Ms. Bryant litigation expenses and costs, including attorneys’
fees; and

For such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

Jury Demand

Plaintiff herby demands a trial by jury of all issues in this action.

Dated this 21° day of September 2018.

PANKEY & HORLOCK, LLC

By: /s/ Larry A. Pankey
Larry A. Pankey
Georgia Bar No. 560725
Erin J. Krinsky
Georgia Bar No. 862274
Attorneys for Plaintiff

-10 -
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1441 Dunwoody Village Parkway
Suite 200

Atlanta, Georgia 30338-4122
Telephone: 770-670-6250
Facsimile: 770-670-6249
LPankey@PankeyHorlock.com
EKrinsky@PankeyHorlock.com

11 -
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CERTIFICATION OF FONT SIZE

Pursuant to Local rule 5.1C of the Local Rules of the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Georgia, I, Larry A. Pankey, Esq., of Pankey &
Horlock, LLC, attorney for Plaintiff, Tamicka Bryant, hereby certify that the
foregoing Complaint is typewritten in MS Word using Times New Roman font,
fourteen (14) point type.

Dated this 21° day of September 2018.

PANKEY & HORLOCK, LLC
By: /s/ Larry A. Pankey
Larry A. Pankey

Georgia Bar No. 560725
Attorneys for Plaintiff

12 -
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